

Minutes of the Public Audit Committee
Held on 07th September 2021 at 09:00am – 12:30pm
Via MS Teams

	Chair:
	
	

	John Union
	JU
	Independent Member - Finance

	Present:
	
	

	Mike Jones
	MJO
	Independent Member – Trade Union

	David Edwards
	DE
	Independent Member - ICT

	In Attendance:
	
	

	Nicola Foreman
	NF
	Director of Corporate Governance

	Charles Janczewski
	CJ
	Chair

	Catherine Phillips
	CP
	Executive Director of Finance

	Ian Virgil 
	IV
	Head of Internal Audit

	Rachel Gidman
	RG
	Executive Director of People and Culture

	Wendy Davies
	WD
	Deputy Head of Internal Audit

	Richard Skone
	RS
	Consultant

	Clive Morgan
	CM
	Assistant Director of Therapies & Healthcare Sciences

	Wendy Davies
	WD
	Deputy Head of Internal Audit

	Geoffrey Wooley
	GW
	Principal Auditor – Internal Audit

	Mark Jones
	MJ
	Audit Wales Financial Manager

	Secretariat:
	
	

	Nikki Regan
	NR
	Corporate Governance Officer

	Observing:
	
	

	Marcia Donovan
	MD
	Head of Corporate Governance

	Apologies:
	
	

	Stuart Walker
	SW
	Executive Medical Director

	Ceri Phillips
	CP
	Vice Chair



	Item No
	Agenda Item
	Action

	AAC
21/09/001
	Welcome & Introductions

The Committee Chair (CC) welcomed all to the meeting.

The Committee noted that Richard Skone was attending for Stuart Walker. 

The Executive Director of Finance (EDF) noted Rob Mahoney was standing in for Chris Lewis. 

	

	AAC
21/09/002
	Apologies for Absence

Apologies noted from Ceri Phillips & Stuart Walker. 

	

	AAC
21/09/003
	Declarations of Interest

None raised. 

	

	AAC
21/09/004
	Minutes of the Committee meeting held on 6th July 2021

Mike Jones (MJ) noted page 1 was 6th July not 6th June and asked to be removed from notes as he did not attend the meeting held on 6 July 2021. 
The Executive Director of People and Culture (EDPC) noted a spelling error in the first sentence of the draft minutes and asked for it to be corrected. 

The Committee resolved that:

a) Subject to the above amendments being made to the draft minutes of the meeting held on 6th July 2021, the draft minutes be approved as a true and accurate record of the meeting.

	

	AAC
21/09/005
	Action log following meeting held on 6th July 2021

21/04/007 – The Head of Internal Audit (HIA) explained this action relates to a previous request to give assurance around the issue of the nurse staffing act within Mental Health and that he had liaised with the Executive Nurse Director.  The position was not likely to change without investment therefore a further review would not identify anything different. The Chair confirmed that the Board were sighted on this. The HIA stated that his action had been completed and should be removed from the Action Log. 

21/04/0102 – This action was on the agenda. 

21/06/006 – Audit Wales ISA 260 report this action was on the agenda. 

21/07/008 – The Committee acknowledged that this action would be brought to the Committee meeting in November 2021. 

	

	AAC
21/09/006
	Any other urgent business: To agree any additional items of urgent business that may need to be considered during the meeting

No urgent business was noted. 

	

	AAC
21/09/007
	Internal Audit Progress Reports

The HIA gave an update on the Internal Audit Progress Reports. The key points noted were – 

· Section 2 of the report had some delays relating to the testing, but it is progressing and would be completed by the next Committee meeting. 

· The internal report regarding item 3 had been completed. 

· The 4th report which had been finalised related to the Ultrasound Governance. 

· Section 4 gave a quick update and a summary on the progress delivery of the internal audit plan. 

· Quality and Safety governance had been discussed with the Executive Director of Nursing (EDN) and had been deferred to next year’s plan in order to allow time for the new Framework to be embedded within the Health Board. 

· It had been agreed to postpone looking at the Health & Safety in the organisation until Quarter 4 of this financial year.

· The HIA explained Section 6 of the report gave summary on those matters that have been finalised since the last meeting.

· A review of Legislative, Regulatory and Alerts Compliance had been finalised. 

The HIA informed the Committee that discussions had taken place with the Corporate Governance Team on the number of areas that Internal Audit had recommended for the tracker enhancements.
The Director of Corporate Governance (DCG) commented that the Internal Audit Progress and Tracking report was a very helpful piece of work (i) to move the tracker forward and (ii) to give the Committee assurance. She commented that the majority of actions had been completed on the tracker and that the Health Board was looking to complete the outstanding actions by the end of this year. 

The Chair commented that he recognised the work that has been undertaken to develop this tracker. He complimented the DCG and the team. The Committee members all agreed and thanked everyone for their work. 

The HIA explained that work was being undertaken with regards to the 5 steps for safer surgery work. He stated that the delay in accessing records had delayed this piece of work.  

The HIA highlighted item 6.2 - positive outcome of the work undertaken in relation to section 6.2 of the report and that he had wanted to highlight this at the request of the health promotion team.  He commented that his team had been able to give reasonable assurance overall. 

The CC thanked the HIA for his help with this piece of work for the Health Board.
 
The Committee resolved that:

(a) The Committee considered the Internal Audit Progress Report, including the findings and conclusions from the finalised individual audit reports. 
(b) The committee approved the proposed amendments to the Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22. 


	

	AAC
21/09/008
	Job Planning Update

Richard Skone (RS) joined the meeting and highlighted the following around the job planning update – 

· From the original audit compliance rate had increased from 17% to 48% with the Allocate eJob Planning software having gone live in November 2020. 

· The website showed timescales and would form a part of the job planning going forward. The website/software was accessible to everyone and contained the job planning procedure which gave clarity to consultants when job planning. 

· A meeting had taken place with the Obs & Gynae team to discuss the over lapping with the job planning and operational team. 

· By 31 December 2021 the aim would be to have everyone’s job plan uploaded. 


The EDPC supported the work that had been undertaken and commented that although there was 48% compliance there was still a need to aim for more people to have job planning. 

RS explained that updates with regards to job planning progress had been sent to the boards and that if anaesthetics come on board, it would help to move a large number of the workforce forward. RS added that it was difficult to advertise for consultants without this. 

The CC asked if any other Health Boards were looking to this. RS confirmed Velindre NHS Trust, Aneurin Bevan HB & Betsi Cadwaladr UHB had looked at this also and that his team had shared the job planning procedure. 

The CC thanked RS and team for all this work.

The Committee resolved that:

(a) The proposed recommendation to continue to support the use of e-Job Planning to further increase information available to the Health Board to improve capacity and demand planning and aid the COVID recovery process be approved.  


	

	AAC
21/09/009
	Audit Wales Update

Mark Jones (MJ) gave an update from Audit Wales on 2 papers. The first paper was a routine update. He confirmed that the audit plan would go to Members on 23rd September. There were 5 pieces of work on going, which would be completed in the calendar year. 

The second paper was the report which was received in June. The report raised 6 recommendations and reflected well on the accounts which were audited. He stated that 5 recommendations were raised by the IT auditors.  DE highlighted a concern that this was raised in a public forum. DE also asked for clarification with regards to (i)  what did were  the implementation date mean in the IT DR plan, (ii) what was  the testing and the refresh of the documentation and (iii) on page 8 regarding  the data centres the implementation date was November 2022 but DE asked for clarification on this point.
Action – MJ agreed to take these queries away, to review this with the IT auditor and provide clarification regarding these points. 

The CC asked if the Audit Wales update papers were in the public domain. The CC commented that these should be added to the Committee’s private session in November. 

The EDF queried whether this piece of work should be brought to this Committee or the Digital & Health Intelligence Committee. 
The DCG agreed this should be brought to the Digital & Health Intelligence Committee (DHI Committee) and would make sure DE took these actions to the next DHI Committee and would raise this with Corporate Governance for the next DHI Committee agenda setting meeting. 

MJ commented that the remainder of the report commented on last year’s report. There had been limited progress in the last 2 months due to the pandemic and that the remaining actions would be picked up as part of 21/22 review. 

The CC thanked MJ for his input. 

The Committee resolved that:

(a) The update report from Audit Wales be noted.

	
















MJ







NF

	AAC
21/09/010
	Audit of Accounts Addendum Report

No comments were made by Committee members in respect of the matter.

	

	AAC
21/09/011
	Review of WHSSC Governance Arrangements

The DCG commented that the WHSSC Governance Arrangements had been subject to external review and that members would recall that Audit Wales had presented their governance findings following that review. This paper had set out was the response to those findings. The DCG commented that the recommendations and responses would not added to the Health Board’s tracker but would be tracked through WHSSC Governance arrangements. 

The Committee resolved that:

(a) the proposed management responses of WHSSC and (b) the management responses of the Welsh Government, in response to Audit Wales’ recommendations be noted


	

	AAC
21/09/012
	Review the System of Assurance Strategy

The DCG provided an update to the Committee in respect of the review of the system of assurance strategy. This report had been drafted previously and had been reported to the Management Executive (ME).  The ME were in full support and keen to take the matter forward. The purpose of the Assurance Strategy was to help the Health Board to target those areas where further assurance was required and to avoid further duplication. 

The DCG explained that the draft strategy was to be signed off by the Board and that the assurance map was already being developed by her team. 

The DCG further explained the RAG rating was given by the Corporate Governance team and that assurance had been given across the 3 lines of defence. She noted that a key alongside the RAG rating should be inserted into the assurance strategy to aid interpretation of the same.    The DCG commented that ME had been supportive and had recommended that to the draft strategy was taken to the Board for sign off, approval and then implementation. 

The Committee resolved that:

(a) The Committee recommended that the draft Assurance Strategy be presented to Board for approval.  

	

	AAC
21/09/013
	Declarations of Interest and Gifts and Hospitality Tracking Report

The DCG explained the declarations of interest matter was on-going work in progress. She said that currently her team had a paper system in place but were looking to use ESR. The paper based system was an administrative burden given the need   to physically load these from paper to an electronic format. 

Analysis which showed 1224 (72%) compliance. The team had received 80 Declarations of Interest since April, with 5 left to be reviewed. Of the 80, 40 had declared no interests. The DCG commented that all those in post at Band 8a or above were asked to complete a declaration of interest form, even if those employees had no interests to declare. 

The compliance rate was noted as a significant improvement. The ECG explained that this was an annual declaration and numbers did rise at certain points of the year. Her team ask if there had been any changes in employees’ declarations of interest and that these are chased up by the Corporate Governance Risk & Regulation team. 

The CC asked how, within the Health Board’s recruitment process, are employees at band 8a and above, had been made aware of this requirement? The DCG confirmed there’s a banner on ESR notifying employees of this.  Further, managers ask if staff have made a declaration. 

The data indicated that this is going well. 

The Committee resolved that:

a) The Committee 
	

	AAC
21/09/014
	Regulatory Compliance Tracking Report

The DCG commented that the Committee had already discussed the internal audit. The covering report described how the recommendations had been met and how those recommendations had been implemented. This had helped move the tracker forwards and had made it more robust. The DCG commented that by November all updates should have been carried out and that this tracker was more comprehensive and the RAG rating had been better defined. 

The Committee resolved that:

(a)  The approach taken by the Risk and Regulation Team to the tracking and reporting of compliance with regulatory inspections and recommendations be approved, 
(b) The assurance provided by the Regulatory Tracker and the confirmation of progress made against recommendations be approved 
(c) The continuing development of the Legislative and Regulatory Compliance Tracker be noted.

	

	AAC
21/09/015
	Internal Audit Tracking Report

The DCG explained the report gave a picture of the changes. The number of implemented recommendations had reduced from 126 – 96. There was further detail in the report.   

[bookmark: _GoBack]The CC asked to what extent have the 19/20 recommendations come down and when would they be completed. The DCG explained that the team were going to undertake the same targeted piece of work again. 

The HIA & Wendy Davies (WD) had set up regular meetings to give support to Corporate Governance. Going forward, the DCG commented that her team would do more assurance work and would look to build into a regular process. 

The CC noted the work undertaken and that the number of recommendations to be implemented had come down and thanked the Corporate Governance for their work. 

The Committee resolved that:

(a) Noted the tracking report for tracking audit recommendations made by Internal Audit.
(b) Noted and assured by the progress which has been made since the previous Audit and Assurance Committee Meeting in July 2021.

	

	AAC
21/09/016
	Audit Wales Tracking Report

The DCG updated the Committee with regards to the Audit Wales tracking report. 
Since the last meeting 9 recommendations had been completed and 10 were partially completed 

The CC commented that whilst the numbers were low, it was good to see assurance. 

The Committee agreed that the Audit Wales tracker should continue to be developed. 

The Committee resolved that:
(a) Noted and received assurance from the progress which has been made in relation to the completion of Audit Wales recommendations. 
(b) Noted the continuing development of the Audit Wales Recommendation Tracker.

	

	AAC
21/09/017
	Internal Audit reports for information:
Assignment Assurance Rating

1. Legislative, Regulatory & Alerts Compliance
2. Healthy Eating Standards – Hospital, Restaurant & Retail Outlets
3. Cancellation of Outpatient Clinics Follow-up (Mental Health Clinical Board)
4. Ultrasound Governance (Clinical Diagnostics and Therapeutics Clinical Board)

WD explained these were undertaken as a request from the 19/20 internal audit plan. There were 5 recommendations, 2 of which were high priority. These highlighted the current governance arrangements. 

Clive Morgan (CM) gave an update on ultrasound governance and commented as follows:

· In terms of the policy & procedure, this had not been well publicised.  This would be taken through a number of groups. 

· There was a new clinical safety group. There was a recommendation of how the clinical board will give assurance. 

· The team would be developing an annual audit plan and would work with digital to get an electronic version. 

· Recommendation 3 – this had been completed. 

· Recommendation 4 was noted and agreed that ultrasound report to the clinical equipment group. The Terms of Reference would be reviewed with the groups to reflect the level of governance expected. The membership would be reviewed and signed off by the Executive Director of Therapies & Healthcare Sciences. 

· The remaining action for Obstetrics & Gynaecology would be reviewed and completed by 30th September and would be monitored going forward. 

The Chair queried if there was a timescale for a revisit of internal audit to move to a reasonable rating.   CM explained the internal audit were developing the annual audit template and anticipated this would  go live in March 2022., that they  wanted to ensure sufficient time to review and that they were are not familiar with all risks that had been highlighted. 

CM also explained that  a follow up piece of work would be built in a follow up and that this would be undertaken  around March 2022,  but this could  have an impact due to year end. CM said that a catch up would take place in January / February to identify when would be best to do this follow up. 
The CC added that patient safety was paramount and emphasised the need to ensure that this piece of work was built in and agreed. There were a lot of positives in the report. 

CM agreed to pick this matter up with the HIA in January 2022. 

The CC thanked CM for attending and giving the assurance. 

The Committee resolved that – 

(a) Noted the tracking report for tracking audit recommendations made by Internal Audit.
(b) Noted and be assured by the progress which has been made since the previous Audit and Assurance Committee Meeting in July 2021.

	-

	AAC
21/09/018
	Items to be deferred to Board / Committee

DE agreed to link with DHI Committee. 

	

	
	Date and Time of Next Meeting:

To note the date, time and venue of the next Committee meeting: 

Tuesday 9th November 2021 at 9.00am
	



1

